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To the Members of Schloss Bangalore Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Schloss Bangalore Private Limited (the “Company”) which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2022, and the statement of profit and loss and statement of
cash flows for the year ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and its loss and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s directors' report, but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of
the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; makir}a
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judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

»  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguard%(
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss and the statement of cash flows dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2022 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2022
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in "Annexure B”.

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2022 on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 31 to the financial statements.

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

¢. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the Note 45 (vi) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

« directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or

«  provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the Note 45 (vii) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (‘Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:

« directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or

+  provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iiiy Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
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in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) above contain any material misstatement.

e. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.
C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
public company. Accordingly, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

o H2h

Jaymin Sheth

Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 114583
Date: 28 September 2022 ICAI UDIN:22114583AWHJYI12471
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Schloss Bangalore Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) () (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
B)

(i) (b)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified once
in three years. In accordance with this programme, all property, plant and equipment were
verified during the year 2020-21. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No
discrepancy was noticed on such verification

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable
properties where the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in
favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company,
except for the following which are not held in the name of the Company:

Description Gross Held in the Whether Period held- | Reason
of property carrying name of promoter, indicate for not
value director or range, being
(INR in their relative where held in
Millions) or employee | appropriate the
name of
the
Compan
y. Also
indicate
if in
dispute
50MW (1.25 | 0.59 M/s. Sarjan | No 07 January | Title
MW of 4 Nos) Realities 2021 deeds
Wind mill Limited are in the
at process
Kudrekonda of
State forest, transfer
Davanagere
District,
Karnataka

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
or intangible assets or both during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion.¢{
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Schloss Bangalore Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Continued)

(b)

(i)

(@)

(b)

(©

(@

(e

®

(iv)

the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by
management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class
of inventory

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the
Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account
of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments in companies,
firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties. The Company has not provided guarantee
and security nor has granted loans to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any other
parties during the year. The Company has granted unsecured loans to employees during the
year in respect of which the requisite information is as below.

Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us the Company has provided loans to employees as below:

Particulars Loans (INR in millions)
Aggregate amount during the year 0.57
Loans to employees
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date 0.23
Loans to employees

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, in our opinion the terms and conditions of the grant of loans to employees
provided during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the schedule of repayment loans given to employees (which as
per the Company policy is interest free) is stipulated. The payment of principal has been regular.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect
of loans given. Further, the Company has not given any advances in the nature of loans to any
party during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted falling
due during the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the
overdues of existing loans given to same parties.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of
repayment.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, there are no loans,
guarantees and securities in respect of which provision of section 185 of the Act are applicable.
According to the information and explanation given to us, the provisions of 186 (except suw

Page 6 of 12



BSR &Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Schloss Bangalore Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Continued)

section (1) of section 186) of the Act, are not applicable to the Company since the Company is
engaged in the business of providing infrastructure facilities. According to the information and
explanation given to us, the Company has not made any investment during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services
provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vii) (@) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise and Sales tax
during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess or other statutory dues have been
regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the
Company did not have any dues on Duty of Customs.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and
Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess or other statutory
dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2022 for a period of more than six months from the dafe
they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Value added Tax and Service Tax
which have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

Name of the Nature of Amount Period to Forum Remarks
statute the dues (INRin which the where , if any
Millions) amount dispute is
relates pending
Finance Act, | Service tax 37.41 April  2007- | Customs .
1994 Dec 2012 Excise and
Service Tax
Appellate
Tribunal
Finance Act, | VAT 1.12 2015-2016 Joint -
1994 Commissione
r
of
Commercial
Taxes
(Appeals)
(viir) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under th/ev{
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Schloss Bangalore Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Continued)

Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(ix) (@)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

(c) in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been
used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2022. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) is not
applicable.

4] According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies (as defined under the Act).

(x) (@) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(xi) (@) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiif) The Company is a private limited company and accordingly the requirements as stipulated by
the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section
188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

(xv) tn our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
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of Schloss Bangalore Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Continued)

(xvi) (a)

(b)

(©

(d)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

()

not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause
3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 1,031.43 million in the current financial year and
Rs. 1,100.04 million in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

We draw attention to Note 2.2 to the financial statements which explains that the Company has
incurred losses in current year and previous year and has accumulated losses as at
31 March 2022. Further, the Company’s current liabilites exceed its current assets as at
31 March 2022 by Rs. 1,006.53 million.

During the first three months of the year, the Company witnessed softer revenues due to the
second wave of COVID-19 and consequent lockdowns in several states across the country.
Also there was a third wave in the month of January 2022, resulting in restrictions in some
states, which also adversely impacted the revenues. This year the Company has seen quite an
improvement in business over the previous year, as this year the Company had lesser impact
of COVID-19 with lesser restrictions. During the year, the Company has obtained working capital
loan from a Bank which has resulted in increase in cash balance as at 31 March 2022. Based
on these initiatives undertaken by the Company, there is adequate cash balance to meet its
obligations.

On the basis of the above and according to the information and explanations given to us, on
the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of
the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company
is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is
not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to/tlw

Page 9 of 12



BSR &Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
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(Continued)

Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

JH-sheit

Jaymin Sheth

Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 114583
Date: 28 September 2022 ICAI UDIN:22114583AWHJY12471

Page 10 of 12



BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Schloss Bangalore Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Schloss Bangalore
Private Limited (‘the Company”) as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at
31 March 2022, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note").

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company'’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Schloss Bangalore Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Continued)

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

£ Bl

Jaymin Sheth

Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 114583
Date: 28 September 2022 ICAI UDIN:22114583AWHJY12471
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SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022

(Rupees in millions)

i As at As at
FaTtEukiEs Note 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital 3 201.70 193.73
Reserves and surplus 4 (1,945.01) (476.97)

(1,743.31) (283.24)
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 5 14,599.53 12,936.51
Other long-term liabilities 6 327.82 168.36
Long-term provisions 7 27.70 35.27
14,955.05 13,140.14
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 8 1,411.08 187.88
Trade payables 9
- Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 21.08 22.62
- Dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 84.08 130.32
Other current liabilities 10 222,78 1,461.68
Short-term provisions 11 0.89 0.89
1,739.90 1,803.38
Total 14,951.64 14,660.28
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 12 12,708.57 12,804.48
Intangibles assets 13 1,164.13 1,451.28
Capital work-in-progress 14 32.98 1.48
Deferred tax assets (net) 15 - -
Investments 16 0.19 -
Long-term loans and advances 17 22.32 10.64
Other non-current assets 18 290.07 159.03
14,218.26 14,426.91
Current assets
Inventories 19 58.07 51.90
Trade receivables 20 67.14 25.49
Cash and bank balances 21 516.78 86.60
Short-term loans and advances 22 60.69 60.04
Other current assets 23 30.70 9.34
733.38 233.37
Total 14,951.64 14,660.28
Significant accounting policies 2
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements 1-45

As per our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
re Private Limited
L2019PTC347492

{1 Sl

Ravi Shankar
Director
DIN: 07967039

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

Joe-5h b
Jaymin Sheth e

Partner
Membership Number: 114583

atnagar
Director
DIN: 07967035

Place: Mumbai
September 2022

2

Place: Mumbai
Date: 28 September 2022

Place: Mumbai
Date: 28 September 2022



SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Rupees in millions)
For the year ended For the year ended 31

Particulars WC 31 March 2022 March 2021
Revenue from operations 24 1,145.98 464.03
Other income 25 31.39 22.82
Total Income 1.177.37 486.85
Expenses

Consumption of food and beverages 26 110.29 61.01
Employee benefits expense 27 287.07 274.60
Finance costs 28 1,228.54 855.18
Depreciation and amortisation expense 29 468.32 489.96
Other expenses 30 622.86 430.72
Total expenses 2.717.08 2,111.47
Loss before tax (1,539.71) (1,624.62)
Tax expense

- Current tax - a

- Deferred tax charge / (credit) 5 =
Loss after tax (1,539.71) (1,624.62)
Earning per equity share (in rupees) 34

Basic earnings per share (Face value Rs 10 each) (76.53) (235.15)
Diluted earnings per share (Face value Rs.10 each) (76.53) (235.15)
Significant accounting policies 2

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements 1-45

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Schloss Bangalore Private Limited
CIN: U55209D)2019PTC347492

Chartered Accountanis
Firm Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

J-H s

ﬂ@h; Qhata

Jaymin Sheth a{nagar Ravi Shankar
Partner Director Director

Membership Number: 114583 DIN: 07967035 DIN: 07967039
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: 28 September 2022 Date: 28 September 2022 Date: 28 September 2022




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Rupees in millions)

Particulars For the year ended 31 For the year ended 31
March 2022 March 2021
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax for the year (1,539.71) (1,624.61)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 468.32 489.96
Finance costs 1,228.55 855.17
Property, plant and equipment written off - 0.09
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) (4.25) (0.03)
Rent equalisation reserve 40.34 50.15
Lease equalisation income - 0.40
Provision no longer required written back - (7.61)
Compensated absences written back 0.37) (8.43)
Interest income {7.38) (1.64)
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 185.50 (246.55)
Working capital movements:
Decrease/(Increase} in loans and advances (3.79) 130.36
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories (6.17) 15.04
Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables (41.65) 3.84
(Increase) in other assets (21.46) (2.04)
(Decrease) in trade payables 47.77) (37.55)
(Decrease)/ Increase in other liabilities (23.77) 256.64
(Decrease)/Increase in provisions (7.20) 6.60
Cash generated from operations 33.69 126.33
Income laxes paid, net {15.75) (1.0%)
Net cash Mows generated from operating activities (A) 17.94 125.24
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, plant and equipments including capital work in progress (1,400.55) (3,588.70)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 4.25 -
Investment in fixed deposits (65.45) (75.00)
Interest received 7.03 1.57
Purchase of non-current investments (0.18) -
Net cash flows used in investing activities (B) (1,454.90) (3,662.13)
Cash flows from f(inancing activities
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 2,054.07 1,938.96
Repayment of long-term borrowings (321.46) (74.17)
Proceeds from issuance of compulsory convertible debentures - 1,027.75
Proceeds from issuance of equity shares including securities premium 79.64 1,338.90
Loans and advances taken, net 1,121.94 96.00
Finance costs paid {Refer note 5A(f)} (1,005.03) (851.07)
Net cash flows generated from financing activities (C) 1,929.16 3.476.37
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 492.18 {60.52)
Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of the year 11.60 72.12
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 503.78 11.60
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 0.74 0.83
Balance with banks
-in current account 143.04 10,77
-in fixed deposit account with original maturity of less than 3 months 360.00 =
503.78 11.60

Total cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 21)

The cash flow statement has been prepared in accordance with "Indirect Method" as set out on Accounting Standard -3 on "Cash Flow Statements" referred to in Companies Act, 2013

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date atlached
For and on behglf of the board of directors of

Schloss Bangglore Private Limited
CIN: US3209D1L2019PTC347492

For BSR& Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

ok

Jaymin Sheth Anuraag Bh
Partner Director
Membership Number: 114583 DIN: 07967035

o QSM»

Ravi Shankar
Derector
DIN: 07967039

Place: Mumbai
Date: 28 September 2022

Place: Mumbai
Date: 28 September 2022

Place: Mumbai
Date: 28 September 2022




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

- the actugl rate at the date of the lmnsaclw

Company information

Schloss Bangalore Private Limited (“the Company”) an Indian subsidiary of Project Ballet Bangalore Holdings (DIFC) Private Limited was
incorporated on 20 March 2019 under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and started its operations effective 17 October 2019 by acquiring
Bangalore hotel undertaking of HLV Limited. The Company is in the hospitality industry and operates hotel under the brand name of "THE
LEELA",

Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods presented in these financial statements

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The accompanying financial statements are prepared in compliance with the requirements under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the
Act™), read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and Companies (Accounting Standard Amendment Rules, 2016) and other
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles ("GAAP") in India, under the historical cost convention, on the accrual basis of accounting, The
financial statements are prepared in Indian rupees in millions

Going Concern

The Company has incurred a loss of Rs 1539.71 millions during the year ended 31 March 2022, has accumulated losses of Rs 3636.94 millions
and negative net worth of Rs.1743.31 millions at 31 March 2022 and as of that date, the Company’s current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by Rs.1006.52 millions

During the first three months of the year, the Company witnessed softer revenues due to the second wave of COVID-19 and consequent
lockdowns in several states across the country. Also there was a third wave in the month of January 2022, resulting in restrictions in some
states, which also adversely impacted the revenues. This year the Company has seen quite an improvement in business over the previous year,
as this year the Company had lesser impact of COVID-19 with lesser restrictions

During the year. the Company has obtained working capital loan from a Bank which has resulted in increase in cash balance as at 31 March
2022,

Based on these initiatives undertaken by the Company, there is adequate cash balance to meet its obligations

The Company has assessed the potential impact of Covid-19 on its capital and financial resources, profitability and overall liquidity position. In
developing the assumptions and estimates relating to the future uncertainties in the economic conditions because of this pandemic, the
Company as at the date of approval of these financial statements has used internal and external sources of information and based on current
estimates, expects to recover the carrying amounts of assets. The impact of Covid- 19 may be different from that estimated as at the date of
approval of these financial statements, The Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions as
the COVID-19 situation continues to evolve

In view of the above. the Company believes that it will be able to meet all its contractual obligations and liabilities as and when they fall due in
near future and accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP in India requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial
statements. The estimates and assumptions used in the accompanying financial statements are based upon management's evaluation of the
relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of financial statements which in management's opinion are prudent and reasonable. Actual
results may differ from the estimates used in preparing the accompaying financial statements. Any revision to accounting estimates is
recognised prospectively in current and future periods

Current / Non-current classification

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
Current assets include the current portion of non-current assets

All other assets are classified as non-current

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
Current liabilities include current portion of non-current liabilities

All other liabilities are classified as non-current

Operating cycle

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents

Based on the nature of services and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents,
the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current — non-current classification of assets and liabilities
Foreign exchange translation

Initial recognition
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction or that approximates




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

Conversion
Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year end are restated at year end rates. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms

of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and non-monetary items
which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed
when the values were determined

Exchange difference

Exchange differences arising on the settlement or on reporting of monetary items of Company at rates different from those at which they were

initially recognized are recorded as income or expense in the year in which they arise.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using indirect method. whereby profit / (loss) before tax for the year is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-
cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing
activities of the Company are segregated

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises of cash in hand and demand deposits with banks. cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original maturity of three
months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value

Earnings per share

The basic and dilutive earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the reporting period. The number of shares used in
computing diluted earnings per share comprises the weighted average shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the
weighted average number of shares that could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares, unless the results
would be anti-dilutive

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised upon rendering of the service, provided pervasive evidence of an arrangement exists, tariff / rates are fixed or are
determinable and collectability is reasonably certain. Revenue comprises sale of rooms, food and beverages and allied services relating to hotel
operations, including management and operating fees. Rebates and discounts granted to customers are reduced from revenue

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account amount outstanding and interest rate applicable

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive payment is established by the reporting date

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (tangible assets) are carried at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and impairment
loss, if any. The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties
and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset
ready for its intended use. other incidental expenses and interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of qualifying property, plant and
equipment upto the date the asset is ready for its intended use

Capital work-in-progress comprises of the cost of property, plant and equipment that are not yet ready for their intended use at the balance sheet
date.

Depreciation on tangible property, plant and equipment has been provided on the straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in
Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of buildings, plant and machinery and furniture and fixtures, in whose case the life of
the assets had been re-assessed as under based on technical evaluation, taking into the account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of
the asset, aspects such as modifications effected since acquisition, the present condition of the existing assets and level of maintenance

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from the date on which assets is ready for use. Depreciation on sale of asset is provided up to
the date of sale of the asset.

Based on the above, the estimated useful lives of the property. plant and equipment are as follows:

Category of assets Useful life as per Schedule 11 (in years) | Useful life as per Technical Assessment (in years)
Buildings 60 years 60 years
Plant and machinery 15 years 10 years to 15 years
Plant and machinery - Windmill 25 years 25 years
Furniture and fixtures 8 years 8 years
Office equipments 5 years Not Applicable
Computers 3 years Not Applicable
Data processing units 6 years Not Applicable
~{¥Vehicles 6 years Not Applicable
™~

s

~~In-respect of leasehold land acquired. any consideration paid is amortised from the date the land is put to use for commercial operations, over

the'balance period of the Ieasc/t/




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

A property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains
or losses from disposal / retirement of an tangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss

2.11 Intangible assets
Intangible assets are carried at cost of acquisition Jess accumulated amortisation and impairment loss, if any. Intangible assets are amortized on

a straight-line basis over the period in which economic benefits will be derived from their use. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method are reviewed atleast each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the
amortisation period is changed accordingly.

Based on the above, the estimated useful lives of the intangible nssets are as follows:

Category of assets Useful life (in years)
Computer software 6 years
Right to use (Car park space) 60 years
Goodwill 5 years

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses from
disposal / retirement of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the

asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

2.12 Impairment of assets
In accordance with AS 28 on 'Impairment of assets', the Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an
asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount is the
greater of the net selling price and value in use. Value in use is the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the
continuing use of the asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. In assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value based on appropriate discount factor. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount, The

reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss

If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is

reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to maximum of depreciable historical cost

2.13 Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in accordance with the income-tax law) and deferred
tax charge or credit (reflecting the tax effects of timing differences between accounting income and taxable income for the period)

Current tax

Provision for current tax is recognized based on the estimated tax liability computed after taking credit for allowances and exemptions in
accordance with the tax laws applicable to the Company

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognized in respect of timing differences between taxable income and accounting income i.e. differences that originate in one

period and are capable of reversal in the subsequent periods. The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or
assets are recognized using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax
assets are recognized only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realized in future; however, where there is
unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward loss under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty supported

by convincing evidence that the sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off assets against liabilities representing current tax and where the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities
relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws

Deferred tax assets are reviewed as at each balance sheet date and written down or written up to reflect the amount that is reasonably / virtually
certain (as the case may be) to be realized.

2.14 Investments
Investments that are readily realisable and are intended to be held for not more than one year from the date, on which such investments are
made, are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long term investments. Current investments are carried at
cost or fair value, whichever is lower. Long-term investments are carried at cost. However. provision for diminution is made to recognise a
decline, other than temporary, in the value of the investments, such reduction being determined and made for each investment individually,

2.15 Employee benefits

Short-term bencefits

All employee benefits pavable wholly within twelve months of rendenng the service are classified as short-term employee benefits. These
benéfits include salary, wages and bonus, short term compensated absences such as paid annual leave and sickness leave. The undiscounted
amount of short-term emplovee benefits (including compensated absences) expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by,
employees is recognized as an expense during the period of rendering of service by the cmployeﬁz ‘\\.DBE




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

2.18

2.19

Long term employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

The Company’s contribution to provident fund and employee state insurance scheme are considered as defined contribution plans and are
recognized as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions

Defined benefit plans

(Post-employment benefit)

The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated
by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is
discounted to determine its present value

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation by an independent actuary using
the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and
measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the present value of
the obligation under defined benefit plan, are based on the market yields on government securities as at the balance sheet date. When the
calculation results in a benefit to the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the net total of any unrecognised actuarial losses and past
service costs and the present value of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan, Actuarial gains and
losses are recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss

Other long-term employee benefits

Compensated absences

The employees can carry forward a portion of the unutilised accrued compensated absences and utilise it in future service periods or received
cash compensation on termination of employment The Company records obligation for compensated absences in the period in which the
employee renders services that increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation.

Inventories
Stock of food and beverages and stores and operating supplies are carried at the lower of cost (computed on a weighted average basis) or net

realisable value. Cost includes the fair value of consideration paid including duties and taxes (other than those refundable), inward freight and
other expenditure directly attributable to the purchase. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in determining the cost of purchase

Investments
Investments which are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year from the date on which such investments are made
are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long-term investments

Investments held by the Company which are long term in nature are stated at cost unless there is any permanent diminution in value where

provision for diminution is made on individual investment basis. Current investments are valued at cost or market price or fair value,
whichever is lower, Earnings on investments are accounted for on accrual basis

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee

Lease arrangements, where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset substantially vests with the lessor, are recognised as

operating leases

Finance leases. which effectively transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item are
capitalised at the inception of the lease term at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and present value of minimum lease payments.
Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. L.ease management
fees, legal charges and other initial direct costs of lease are capitalised

Lease payments under operating lease are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
term except where another systematic basis is more representative of time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are
consumed.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable

that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are recognised at the best estimate of the expenditure

required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date. The provisions are measured on an undiscounted basis,

Provision in respect of loss contingencies relating to claims, litigation, assessment, fines, penalties, etc. are recognised when it is probable that

a liability has been incurred, and the amount can be estimated reliably

Contingencies:

P;Q’vis\ibn in respect of loss contingencies relating to claims. litigation, assessment, fines, penalties, etc. are recognised when it is probable that

a Ifabilitif.has been incurred, and the amount can be estimated reliably
| g 1]




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require
an outflow of resources, or a present obligation whose amount cannot be estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions, but
are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remote.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continuously and if
it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the
change occurs.

2.20 Segment Reporting
The Company has considered business segments as the primary segments for disclosure on the basis that the risk and returns of the Company is

primarily determined by the nature of services

Revenues and expenses have been identified to the segment based on their relationship to the business activity of the segment
Income/Expenses relating to the enterprise as a whole and not allocable on a reasonable basis to business segments are reflected as unallocated
corporate income/expenses. Inter-segment transfers are at prices which are generally market IW




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

3 Share capital

(Rupees in millions)

Partical As at As at

articlars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Authorised

67,500,000 (Previous year: 67.500.000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 675.00 675.00
675.00 675.00

Issued, subscribed and paid up

20,169,566 (Previous year: 19,373,216) equity shares of Rs.10 each, fully paid up 201.70 193.73
201.70 193.73

a) Reconciliation of number of shares and amounts at the beginning and at the end of the reporting peried

(Rupees in millions)

. As at 31 March 2022
Particulars

As at 31 March 2021

Al the beginning of the year
Shares issued during the year
At the end of the year

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
1,93,73,216 193.73 47,60,000 47.60
7,96,350 7.96 1,46,13,216 146.13
2,01,69,566 201.70 1,93,73,216 193.73

b) Rights, preference and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the Company’s residual assets. The equity shares
are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a poll (not show of hands) are in proportion to its share of the paid-up

equity capital of the Company,

On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Comnpany.

holdi

y / ultimate g pany

¢) Shares held by holding comp

(Rupees in millions)

. As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Particulars
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up
Project Ballel Bangalore Holdings (DIFC) Pvt. Limited, holding company 2,01,69,565 201.70 - -
BSREP 11 India Ballet Holdings (DIFC) Limited, ultimate holding company 1 0.00 - -
BSREP 11l India Ballet III Pte. Ltd., holding company - - 1,93,73,215 193.73
BSREP 111 India Ballet Pte. Ltd., ultimate holding company - - 1 0.00
2,01,69,566 201.70 1,93,73,216 193.73
d) Details of shares held by shareholders bolding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company
. ) As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021 —|
Particulars s i
No. of shares % of Holding No. of shares % of Holding
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up
Project Ballet Bangalore Holdings (DIFC) Private Limited 2,01,69,565 99.99% - -
BSREP 111 India Ballet 11I Pte. Ltd, . - 1,93,73,215 99.99%
2,01,69,565 99.99% 1,93,73,215 99.99%

¢) Company has not issued any bonus shares. shares for consideration other than cash and neither bought back any shares from the date of incorporation

f) Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up

Promoters

Project Ballet Bangalore Holdings (DIFC) Private Limited
BSREP 11I India Ballet Holdings (DIFC) Limited

As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

Change in % of

No. of shares % of Holding No. of shares % of Holding| Holding
2.01.69.565 99.99% - 0.00% 99.99%
0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%
2,01,69.566 99.99% - 0.00% 99.99%




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Noles to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

4 Reserves and surplus

(Rupees in millions)

i As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Securities preniium account:

At the commencement of the year 1,620.27 427.50
Add: Premium on shares issued during the year 71.67 1,192.77
Al (he end of the year 1,691.94 1.620.27
Retained earnings:
At the commencement of Lhe year (2,097.24) (472.63)
Add Loss for the year (1,539.71) (1,624.61)
At the end of the year {3.636.94) (2,097.24)
Total (1,945_.0]) (47&
5 Long-term borrowings
(Rupees in millions)
Particulars ] S
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Secured:
Term loans:
- From banks
Rupee term loan (Refer note A and C) 11,169.54 11,436.93
Less : Amount disclosed under short term borrowings {Refer note A(d) below} (54.20) 4.75)
11,115.34 11,432.18
Working capital term loan (Refer note B) 2,000.00 -
Less : Amount disclosed under short tlerm borrowings {Refer note B(c) below} (18.56) -
1.981.44 -
Unsecured:
10 50% unsecured compulsorily convertible debentures (Refer note D) 1,502.75 1,502.75
Long-term maturities of finance lease obligation (Refer note E) - 1.58
1,502.75 1,504.33
Total 14,599.53 12,936.51
Noles:

A Term loan from Bank I
The lender has granted a term loan facility under the Common Facility Agreement dated 30 September 2019 10 the Company and three co-borrowers i e Schloss Chennai Private Limited,

Schloss Chanakya Private Limited, Schloss Udaipur Private Limited, for a total amounting to Rs 27,500 00 millions for the purpose of acquisition and refurbishment of the hotel property
acquired by each of the three co- borrowers and the Company’s hotel property in Bangalore. The door to door tenure of the loan is 15 years including moratorium of one year The loan is
repayable in 56 quarterly structured installments beginning 31 December 2020 The loan caries interest rate linked to lender's one year marginal cost of funds based lending rate
("MCLR"). subject to annual reset. plus spread ranging from 0.80% to 1 60% based on the external credit rating. The Company has available facility of Rs. 960 millions (Previous Year:
Rs 960 millions) (including undrawn amount of Rs 804 millions (Previous Year: 858 millions)) and rale of interest as on 31 March 2022 is 780%pa (Previous year 7.80% p a)
Primary security:

The total term loan under the said agreement is secured against assets of the Company. other co-borrowers and obligators i e. Schloss HMA Private Limited and Leela Palaces and Resorts

(a

Limited under the Common Facility Agreement, interalia, including:

i Exclusive charge on the total assels (including mortgage of property and / or mortgage of leasehold rights in case of leasehold property, if any} (present & future)
ii Exclusive charge on brand ‘Leela” pertaining to Hotels, other intangibles, Goodwill, Intellectual Property (IP), uncalled capital (present and future).

Wi Exclusive charge on all bank accounts including bul not limited to Escrow account (present & future)

iv. First charge on the total current assels (present and future)

v, Hypothecation of cash flows

5 Long-lerm borrowings (Continued)
Notes (Conlinued):

A Term loan from Bank (Continued)

(b) Corporate guarantee:
i) of Schioss HMA Privale Limited, a fellow subsidiary
ii) of Leela Palaces and Resorts Limited, a feliow subsidiary

{c) Other security:
i) Pledge of 30% shares of the Company held by the Project Ballet Bangalore Holdings (DIFC) Pvi. Limited. Holding company, in favour of security trustee for the benefit of lenders for
the entire term loan exposure
ii) A guarantee of BSREP Tl India Ballet Pie. Limited, ullimate Holding company, situated at Singapore upto an amount of Rs 3,000 millions, enforceable at Singapore towards meeling
the shortfall in debt service obligations till 30 March 2022
i1} A guarantee of BSREP 111 India Ballet Holdings (DIFC) Limited , ultimate Holding company. situated at Dubai upto an amount of Rs 3.000 millions. enforceable at Dubai towards
meeting the shortfall in debt service obligations from 31 March 2022
iv) Mortgage on the land situaled at Agra owned by Leela Palaces and Resorts Limited

(d) Current maturities of long-term borrowings are classified as short-term borrowings

(e) Modification in facility terms:

Lender on the request of the management has waived the requirement of testing of financial covenants till the end of FY 2022-23 with testing to be performed on the audited balance sheet
as at 31 March 2024 onwards

{[) Moratorium on interest:
‘Company has availed the moratorium facility for interest on term loan for the period March, 2020 to August 2020 which has been further capitalised into tenm loan w e f. 01 October 2020

amounting Rs. 428 62 millions ( Previous vear 364 54 milliu




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

B

(a)

(b

=

(c)

(a

(b]

(c

(a

1)

=

®

The lender has granted a Working capital term Loan (WCTL) Facility under Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line 3.0 (GECL 3.0) facility of Rs. 2000 millions (Previous Year: Nil) on 24
December. 2021 to the Company to augement net working capital, requirements to meet operational liabilities. The door to door tenure of the loan is 6 years including moratorium of

principal of two years The loan is repayable in 48 quarterly structured install beginning D ber 2023 The loan carries interest rate linked to lender’s six months marginal cost of

funds based lending rate ("MCLR"), plus 1%, subject to annual reset

Primary security:
Second charge on securities mentioned in A | {a) above

Other security:

i} Pledge of 30% shares of the Company held by the Project Ballet Bangalore Holdings (DIFC) Pvt. Limited, Holding company, in favour of security trustee for the benefit of lenders for
the entire term loan exposure

i) Extension of mortgage on the land situated at Agra owned by Leela Palaces and Resorts Limited

Current maturities of long-term borrowings are classified as short term borrowings

Term loan I1
The lender had availed a term loan facility under Lease Rental Discounting (LRD) facility under the Master Facility Agreement dated 17 March 2021 to the Company, amounting to Rs

1,400.00 millions for the purpose of acquisition of the Galleria office in Bangalore. The door to door tenure of the loan was 12 year including moratorium of one year The loan was
repayable in 132 monthly structured installments beginning March 2022 The loan carried interest rate linked to Original Lenders’ Lenders Benchmark Rate with negative Spread of 130
bps per annum The rate during the year was 7.95% (Previous year 8 50%)

During the year, the said facility was refinanced from SBI for amount of Rs 1,100 millions The door to door lenure of the loan is 15 years from the date of first disbursement The loan's
repayable tenure is 180 monthly structured installments beginning December 2021. The loan carries interest rate linked to lender's one year marginal cost of funds based lending rate
("MCLR"). subject 10 monthly and annual reset. plus spread of 0. 73% The rate of interest as on March 31,2022is 775% pa

Primary Security:
Exclusive first charge on hypothecation of existing and future rent receivables including lease rentals, parking rental, maintenance receivables and any other receivables from existing
tenants of the commercial building named "Galleria" from 1st floor to 7th floor, located at Sy, no. 94, 95, 96, HAL Stage - II, Old airport road, Kodihalli village, Varthu Hobli, now part

of municipal no. 23/4, PID no. 74-49-23/4, situated at Kodihalli main road. 6th cross, Bangalore admeasuring 15.203 98 sq ft

Collateral Security:
(a) Exclusive first charge on the commercial building named "Galleria" from 15t floor Lo 7th floor, located at Sy. no 94, 95, 96, HAL Stage - 11, Old airport road, Kodihalli village, Varthur

Hobli, now part of municipal no. 23/4, PID no. 74-49-23/4, situated at Kodihalli main road, 6th cross, Bangalore admeasuring 15203 98 sq. ft along with underlying land admeasuring
24,404 sq mtrs

(b) Assignment (by way of security interest) the right to use 305 car parking space

() Exclusive charge as Lien on 3 months DSRA

(d) Exclusive charge on Escrow account

Current maturities of long-term borrowings are classified as short term borrowings

10.50% unsecured compulsorily convertible debentures

Conversion {erms:

At the end of the tenure {15 years), each Compulsorily Convertible Debentures ("CCD") of face value of Rs 100 each will be converted into 1 equity share of face value of Rs 10 each
CCD can be converted during the tenure of CCD at the option of the parties i e CCD holders and the Company. Provided that the CCDs shall automatically stand converted into equity
shares upon

(a) Commencement of the corporate insolvency resolution process of the Company or. any of the co-borrowers under the Common Facility Agreement dated 30 September 2019 executed
with the lender; or

(b} Conversion of loan into equity of the Company or any or all of the co-borrowers under the Common Facility Agreement, unless otherwise instructed by the lender as per the Common
Facility Agreement who have provided the loans or who may have acceded (o the financing documents

Restriction on payment of interest on CCDs:
As per terms of the Common Facility Agreement referred at clause 5{A} above, interest on the CCDs shall be due but cannol be paid by the Company until all the obligations under

Common Facility Agreement are completed or seized

Long-term malurities of finance lease obligation
Finance lease obligation is on account of Plant and Machinery (Chiller) taken on finance lease for a period of 3 years which will end on August 2022 Repayments are done by equated

monthly installments over 36 months

Other long-term liabilities

(Rupees in milfions)

) As al As at
Eagiiculars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Trade / security deposits 77.358 96.30
Rent equalisation reserve 112.40 72.06
Interest accrued but not due CCD (Refer note 5B(b) and 28) 138.07 -

327.82 168.36
Long-term provisions
Particul As at As at
. - 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Provision for employee benefits:
- Compensated absences 3.02 71.16
- Gratuity (Refer note 36) 24.68 28.11
.70 35.27
Shor(-term borrowings

. Asal As at
articalas 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Secured
Warking capital loan (Refer note A) 120.38 87.13

Unsecured,
Tivter corporate depasit from related party (Refer Note B) and (Refer note 35) 1,217.94 96.00
Current-miatannes of long-term borrowings {Refer note 5A(d) and 5B(c)} 72.76 4.75
A 1.411.08




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

(A)

(a)

(b]

(©)

(B)

Noles:

Working capital loan
The lender has granted a warking capital facility as per Agreement dated 11 August 2020 to the Company and three co-borrowers i e. Schloss Chennai Private Limited, Schloss Chanakya

Private Limited, Schloss Udaipur Private Limited, for a tolal amounting to Rs 50000 millions (Previous Year 1,000 00 millions) to meet the working capital requirement and it is
repayable on demand The loan carries interest rate linked to lender’s one year marginal cost of funds based lending rate ("MCLR"), subject to monthly reset. The rate of interest as on 31
March 2022 is 7.95 % p a. {Previous year 7.95 % p.a)

Primary security:

Exclusive first charge on the entire current assets (Present and Future) of the Borrower and Schloss HMA Private Limited (hotel management entity)

Collateral security:

(i) Extension of exclusive charge on the entire fixed assets (including mortgage of property and/or mortgage of lease hold rights in case of lease hold property, if any) of the borrower

(ii) Extension of exclusive charge on all cash flows of the borrower and Schloss HMA Private Limited (hotel management entity), related to project (including but not limited to ESCROW
account and Debt Service Reserve Accounts) opened/to be opened with lender

(ini) Extension of mortgage on the land situated al Agra owned by Leela Palaces and Resorts Limited

(iv) Extension of exclusive charge on brand Leela, other intangibles, goodwill, IP relating to the 4 SPVs owned by Schloss HMA Private Limited

(v} Extension of pledge of 30% shares of (i) Schloss Chanakya Private Limited held by BSREP 11l India Ballet | Ple Ltd (ii) Schloss Udaipur Private Limited held by Project Batlel
Udaipur Holdings (DIFC) Pvt Limited {mn) Schloss Bangalore Private Limited held by Project Ballet Bangalore Holdings (DIFC) Pvt Limited. (iv} Schloss Chennai Private Limited
Project Ballet Chennai Holdings (DIFC) Pvt Limited. in favour of the lender for the entire exposure (TL+WC)

Corporate guarantee:

i) of Schloss HMA Private Limited, a fellow subsidiary

ii) of Leela Palaces and Resorts Limiled, a fellow subsidiary.
iif) A guarantee of BSREP 11l India Ballet Pte Limited, ultimate Holding company, situated at Singapore upto an amount of Rs 3,000 millions, enforceable at Singapore towards meeting

the shortfall in debt service obligations till 30 March 2022
iv) BSREP III India Ballet Holdings (DIFC) Limited (Ultimate Holding Company) to the extent of Rs 3,000 00 millions to meet any shortfall in debt servicing obligation of the

Borrower) shall be extended to the proposed loan from 31 March 2022

Inter corporate deposit (ICD) from related party
Inter corporate deposil taken from Schloss Udaipur Private Limited, Schloss Chennai Private Limited, Schloss Chanakya Private Limited & Schloss HMA Private Limited and carries

interest rate of 125 % pa ICD is repayable on demand

Trade payables
{(Rupees in millions)

. As al As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
- Tolal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note below) 21.08 22,62
- Tolal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

- Related parties (Refer note 35) 11.99 25.51
- Others 72.09 104.81
105.16 152.94

Trade payables (Continued)
Note:

Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

(Rupees in nillions)

Particulars Asat Asal
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at 21.08 22,62

year end

Imerest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end 0.00 0.04

Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day 1.02 1.99

during the year

Imerest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Acl to suppliers registered under the - -

MBEMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

Intesest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act. - -

bevond the appointed day during the year

Tmerest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act, for payments already 0.01 0.04

made

Further mterest remaining due and pavable for earlier vears - -

The management has identified enterprises which have provided goods and services to the Company and which qualify under the definition of micro and small enterprises as defined under

MSMED Aul‘{




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

9 Trade payables (Continued)
As at 31-03-2022

Outstanding for following periods from date of transaction

Particulars Accrued 2-3 More than 3 Total
Less than 1 year I -2 years
cxXpenses years Years
(i) MSME - 21.08 - - - 21.08
(ii) Others 10.46 73.41 020 - - 84.07

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others -
Total 10.46 94.49 0.20 - - 105.15

As at 31-03-2021

Outstanding for following periods from date of transaction

Particulars Accrued 2-3 More than 3 Total
Less than 1 year  1-2 years
expenses years vears
(i) MSME - 22.62 - - - 2262
(ii) Others 31.63 97.97 0.72 - - 130.32
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - B - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -

Total 31.63 120.59 0.72 -




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the financinl statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

10

1

Other current liabilities
R i milli
: As at Asat
Sarticuiars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
To related parties (Refer Note 35)
Interest accrued and due on inter corporate deposit 1.23 4,10
Settlement in relation with business acquisition - 68.45
Other than related parties
Current maturities of finance lease obligation 1.97 4.58
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 88.32 -
Advance from customers 53.36 41.52
Employee dues payable 28,73 10.00
Statutory dues payable
- Tax deducted at source and equalisation levy 26.76 40.17
- Provident fund 1.90 1.94
- Profession tax 0.06 0.06
- Employees state insurance 0.10 0.12
Trade / security deposits 19.27 1.80
Capital creditors 1.08 1,288.94
222.78 1.461.68
Short-term provisions
{Rupees in millions)
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Provision for employee benefits:
- Compensated absences
- Gratuity (Refer note 36)

0.31 035
0.58 0.54
0,89 .89
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SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

15

Deferred tax assels (net)

{Rupees in millions)

Particulars _— Asal
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
The components of deferred tax balances are as follows:
{4) Deferred tux assets
Arising on accouni of timing differences in:
Provision for employee benefits - 10.47
Disallowance u/s 43B of the Income-tax Act, 1961 111.45 116.52
Unabsorbed depreciation / business loss {Refer note below) 188.09 88.41
299.54 215.39
(B) Deferred tax liability
Arising on account of timing differences in:
Provision for employee benefits 3.87 -
Excess of depreciation / amortisation on property. plant and equipment under income tax 295.67 215.39
laws over depreciation / amortisation provided in the books
299.54 215.39

Deferred tax assets (net) - (A)-(B)
Note

Deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent of deferred tax liabilities, as this amount is considered to be virtually certain of realization The remaining deferred tax assets of Rs
701 66 millions on account of unabsorbed depreciation and business losses are not recognised, as they are not considered to be virtually certain of realization

Non-current investments

{Rupees in millions)

Particulars AEAL Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Other investments (valued at cost unless stnted otherwise)

Investment in equity instruments (unquoted)

18,600 (31 March 2021 Nil) equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up in Green Infra Wind Power Generation Limited 0.19 -
0.19 -

Aggregate amount of quoted investments - .
0.19 -

Apgregate amount of unquoled investments
Aggregate provision for diminution in value of i

Long term loans and advances

{Rupees in millions)

Particulars it L]
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Unsecured, considered good:
Capital advances 0.69 4.76
21.63

Advance tax and tax deducled at source (net of provisions}

5.88
1132 10.64 ﬂ
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

19

20

Other non-current assets
(Rupees in millions)

. As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Prepaid expenses 340 4.55
Margin money deposits with original maturity of more than 12 months 0.38 0.05
Fixed deposit account with original maturity of more than 12 months 127.12 -
Security deposits 159.17 154.43

290.07 lﬂ
Inventories
(At lower of cost and net realisable value)

: As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Food and beverages 19.90 21.15
Stores and operating supplies 38.17 30.75

58.07 51.90
Trade receivables
(Rupees in miflians)
Asal As at

Particulars

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

for a period

Receivables
payment:

- Unsecured, considered good

- Unsecured, considered doubtful

Less: Provision for doubtful receivables

Other receivables:
- Unsecured, considered good

six months from the date they were due for

3.51 0.14

3.51 0.14

3.51 0.14
63.63 25.35
63.63 25.35
67.14
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20 Trade receivables (Continued)

As at 31-03-2022
Outstanding for following periods from date of transaction
Particulars Lessthan6 6 months-1 More than Total
1-2 years 2. dyears
months ear s 3 vears
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - idered good 63.63 351 - - - 67 14
(i) Undisputed Trade Recei ables — considered doubtful - - - - = .
(iv) Disputed Trade recein ables - considered good - - - - - -
(+) Disputed Trade receiy ables — considered doubtful - - - - - -
Less: provision for doubtful debls - - E B - -
Total 63,63 331 - - - 6714
—

As al 31-03-2021

Crutstanding for following periods from date of transietion

Particulars Lessthané 6 months-1 More than Total
1-2 years 2 -3 years
‘months year dyears
1 Undisputed Trade R e o idcred good 2538 [TH Y] - - - 2549
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered doubtful - - & " o] =
(iv) Disputed Trade receir ables - considered good . - - - - -
{+) Disputed Trade receis ables — considered doubtful - - s - . -
Less: provision for doubtful debts - - - - - -
Total 2535 0.14 - - - 28,40
— e
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21 Cash and bank balances
(Rupees in prillions)

. As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash on hand 0.74 0.83
Balance with banks
- in current accounts 143.04 10.77
360.00 -

- in fixed deposit account with original maturity of less than 3 months

Other bank balances
- in deposit accounts with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months 13.00 75.00

516.78 86.60

22 Short-term loans and advances
(Rupees in millions)

. As at As at
Rt 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Unsecured, considered good:

Security deposits 5.23 3.65
Advance to suppliers 5.24 2,78
Prepaid expenses 31.54 24.02
Balances with government authorities 18.45 28.86
Loans and advances to employees 0.23 0.29
Receivable from HLV Limited - 0.44

60.69 60.04

23 Other current assefs
(Rupees In millions)

Particul As at As at
o 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
To related parties (Refer Note 35)

- 1.60

Receivable against reimbursements

Other than related parties
Interest accrued on deposits
Unbilled revenue
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24

25

26

27

28

29

Revenue from operations

(Rupees in millions)

Particulars

For the year ended 31
March 2022

For the year ended 31
March 2021

(a) Sale of products:
Food and beverages revenue

(b) Sale of services:
Room income
Income from rental and related services
Other allied services (laundry income. health club income, airport transfers, membership etc }

Other income

491.73 236.48
396.08 172.54
210.05 44.87
48.12 10.14
654.25 227.55
1,145.98 464.03

(Rupees in millions)

For the year ended 31

For the year ended 31

Particulars March 2022 March 2021

Interest income
- fixed deposit 6.01 0.46
- others 1.37 1.18
Provision no longer required written back - 7.61
Compensated absence written back {Refer Note 36) 0.37 8.43
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 4.25 0.03
Net gain or loss on foreign currency transaction and translation (net) - 0.66
Miscellaneous income 19.39 4.45
31.39 22.82

Consumption of food and beverages

(Rupees in millions)

For the year ended 31

For the year ended 31

Particulars March 2022 March 2021
Inventory at the beginning of the year 21.15 29.82
Add: Purchases 109.04 52.34
130.19 82.16
Less: Inventory at the end of 1he year 19.90 21.15
110.29 61.01

Employee benelfits expense

(Rupecs in millions)

For the year ended 31

For the year ended 31

Particulars March 2022 March 2021
Salaries and wages 233.79 237.01
Contribution Lo provident fund, employees state insurance and labour welfare fund (Refer note 36) 12.60 11.93
Gratuity expenses (Refer note 36) 0.74 3.09
Staff welfare expenses 39.94 22.57
287.07 274.60

Finance costs

(Rupees in millions)

For the year ended 31

For the year ended 31

Particulars March 2022 March 2021
Interest expense on:
- Term loans 977.63 836.78
- Working Capital Term Loan 9.43 1.97
- Compulsorily convertible debentures (CCDs) * 157.79 -
- Inter corporate deposit 46.28 4.98
- Finance lease and Others 117 0.57
Other borrowing costs (term loan fee, processing fee and advisory fee) 8.24 10.88
Loan prepayment Charges 28.00 -
1,228.54 855.18
* On request by the Company, the CCD holder had waived the interest till 31 March 2021
Depreciation and amortisation
(Rupees in millions)
For the year ended 31 For the year ended 31
Particulars March 2022 March 2021
Depreciation on Property. Plant & Equipments 180.39 231.45
Amortisation of intangible assets 287.93 258.51
468.32 489.96
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30 Other expenses

(Rupees in millions)

For the year ended 31

For the year ended 31

Particulars March 2022 March 2021
Consumption of stores and operating supplies 47.39 32.06
Power and fuel 56.94 56.01
Rent 128.76 139.75
Repairs and maintenance

- buildings 18.43 12.37
- plant and machinery 43.14 35.69
- others 20.66 15.49
Insurance 10.49 8.90
Communication 3.48 3.07
Travelling and conveyance 2.85 1.52
Guest transport 6.80 1.24
Printing and stationary 2.28 1.41
Sales and credit card commission 10.14 5.88
Business promotion 41.92 25.62
Management fees (Refer note 35) 43.37 5.85
Legal and professional fees 49.36 11.72
Payment to auditor's (Refer note below} 1.70 1.50
Rates and taxes 86.64 58.00
Share issue expenses - 5.40
Property, plant and equipment written off - 0.09
Net gain or loss on foreign currency transaction and translation 0.54 -
Bank charges 0.29 0.18
Miscellaneous Expenses 47.68 8.97
622.86 430.72
Payment to auditor’s (excluding taxes) (Rupees in millions)
For the year ended 31 For the year ended 31

Particulars March 2022 March 2021
Statutory audit 1.70 1.50
Reimbursement of expenses - =

1.70 1.50




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

31 Contingent liabilities and commitments

(a) Contingent liabilities

(Rupees in millions)

Particulars o nten
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Disputed Statutory liabilities {refer note below} 38.53 35.42
38.53 35.42
Note:
The breakup of disputed statutory liabilities is as under: (Rupees in millions)

i As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Department in appeals

Service tax * 37.41 34.46
VAT # 1.12 0.96
38.53 35.42

*Service tax department has raised demand on HLV Limited vide Show Cause Notice ("SCN") on account of disallowance:

(a) of CENVAT availed on debit notes raised by Leela Lace Holding Private Limited for service tax paid on lease rental under Voluntary Compliance
Encouragement Scheme ("VCES") introduced by Ministry of Finance, Government of India to encourage payment of taxes on undisclosed income;

(b) on account of classification of in-room dining and mini bar under room accommodation (HLV Limited has paid service tax on in-room dining and mini bar
service under restaurant category (department has considered the said services under room accommodation category to levy tax) and

(c) of abatement claimed under rent-a-cab on account of input availment on car washing, maintenance etc

Order to SCN was received in favour of HLV Limited. However, in departmental query the issue was raised again and the department has filed an appeal before

CESTAT against the order received in favour of HLV Limited

# Deputy Commissioner of Commercial taxes has raised demand vide show cause notice (SCN) on account of following:

(a) Disallowance of input credit on account of non-filing of return by vendors along with interest

(b) Dy. Commissioner also levied penalty for delay in making payment of taxes

Subsequently the tax amount of Rs. .08 million has been paid by the company. The interest and penalty amount has been waived as per govt order number FD 49

CSL 2021 dated 29 March 2021. Thus the matter has achieved closure.

(b) Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed and not provided for (net of advances) amounts to Rs Nil

32 Expenditure in foreign currency (on payment basis)

(Rupees in millions)

For the year ended

For the year ended 31

Particulars 31 March 2022 March 2021
Other expenses (advertisement fee, commission fee, sales and marketing fee, reservation fee etc.) 24.21 21.72
24.21 21.72

33 Details of imported and indigenous consumption

For the year ended 31 March 2022

(Rupees in millions)

For the vear ended 31 March 2021

i Amount % of total Amount % of total
Particulars g .
consumption consumption
Imported - - - N
Indigenous 110.29 100.00% 61.01 100.00%
110.29 100.00% 61.01 100.00%

34 Earnings per share

Eamings Per Share is calculated in accordance with Accounting Standard 20 - 'Earnings Per Share' - (AS-20) prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act,

2013
(Rupees in millions except per share data)
For the year ended For the year ended 31
Particulars 31 March 2022 March 2021
Loss after tax (1,539.71) (1,624.62)
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares:
Considered in calculation of Basic EPS 2,01,18,690 69,08,914
Considered in calculation of Diluted EPS 2,01,18,690 69,08,914
Face value per Equity Share (Rupees) 10 10
Eamings Per Share (Rupees)
Basic (76.53) (235.15)
Diluted * (76.53) (235.15)
- Asheimpact of the CCDs was anti-dilutive, resulting in a decrease in loss per share from continuing ordinary activities, the effect thereof has been ignored
Vs "<, whilst :_:’:i]t‘.!:llﬂ'i_‘i‘h&(\li] uted eamings per share.
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35 Related party disclosures

(a) Names of related parties

(i) Ultimate Holding company

BSREP Il India Ballet Holdings (DIFC) Limited, ultimate holding company (w.e f 30 March 2022)

BSREP III India Ballet Pte. Ltd. (Till 30 March 2022)

(ii) Holding company

Project Ballet Bangalore Holdings (DIFC) Pvt. Limited, holding company (w.e.f 30 March 2022)

BSREP 11l India Ballet 111 Pte. Ltd. (Till 30 March 2022)

(iii) Fellow subsidiaries

Schloss HMA Private Limited

Schloss Chennai Private Limited

Schloss Udaipur Private Limited

Schloss Chanakya Private Limited (Till 30 March 2022)
Schloss Gandhinagar Private Limited

Leela Palaces and Resorts Limited

Tulsi Palace Resort Private Limited (w.e.f 3rd May 2021)

(iv) Key managerial personnel

Mr. Kunal Chauhan, General Manager (Till 16 July 2021)

Mr. Madhav Sehegal, General Manager (w.e.f 14th August 2021)
Mr. Subrat Sinha, Financial Controller

(v) Other related parties
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited (w.e.f 31 March 2022)

(b) Transactions during the year

(Rupees in millions)

For the year ended

For the year ended 31

Particulars 31 March 2022 March 2021
Management fees expense

Schloss HMA Private Limited 43.37 5.85
Reimbursement of expenses paid to / (received from)

Schloss Chennai Private Limited 0.13 -
Schloss HMA Private Limited 13.55 4.32
Schloss Udaipur Private Limited 0.56 =
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited 0.14) -
Schloss Gandhinagar Private Limited (0.13) -
Tulsi Palace Resort Private Limited (0.23) -
Issuance of 10.50% unsecured compulsorily convertible debentures
BSREP Il India Ballet ITI Pte. Ltd - 1,027.75
Issuance of right issue shares (Including securities premium)
BSREP 11 India Ballet III Pte. Ltd 79.64 1,338.90
Inter corporate deposit taken

Schloss Udaipur Private Limited 975.00 96.00
Schloss HMA Private Limited 210.00 40.00
Schloss Chennai Private Limited 565.00 -
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited 195.00 -
Inter corporate deposit settlement

Schloss HMA Private Limited 210.00 40.00
Schloss Udaipur Private Limited 371.00 -
Schloss Chennai Private Limited 165.00 -
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited 77.06 -
Interest on inter corporate deposit

Schloss Udaipur Private Limited 23.27 4.43
Schloss HMA Private Limited 12.14 0.55
Schloss Chennai Private Limited 8.89 -
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited 1.99 -
Interest on 10.50% unsecured compulsorily convertible debentures

157.79

Project Ballet Bangalore Holdings (DIFC) Pvt. Limited, holding company
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Settlement in relation with business acquisition

Schloss Chennai Private Limited - 20.24
Schloss Udaipur Private Limited - 25.22
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited - 22.99
Managerial remuneration*

Mr. Kunal Chauhan 4.44 12.58
Mr. Madhav Sehegal 6.66 -
Mr. Subrat Sinha 3.74 3.21

* Managerial Temuneration excludes provision for gratuity and compensated absences, since these are provided on the basis of an actuarial valuation for the
Company as a whole

(¢) Outstanding balances (Rupees in millions)
. As at As at

i 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Trade payables (Including provisions)

Schloss HMA Private Limited 13.38 25.51

Schloss Udaipur Private Limited 0.30 -

Schloss Chennai Private Limited 0.10 -

Settlement in relation with business acquisition

Schloss Chennai Private Limited - 20.24

Schloss Udaipur Private Limited - 25.22

Schloss Chanakya Private Limited - 22.99

Other receivable

Schloss Chanakya Private Limited 0.14 -

Trade receivable

Schloss Gandhinagar Private Limited 0.16 -

Tulsi Palace Resort Private Limited 0.04 -

Receivable against reimbursements

Schloss HMA Private Limited 1.59 1.60

Inter corporate deposit taken

Schloss Udaipur Private Limited 700.00 96.00

Schloss Chennai Private Limited 400.00 -

Schloss Chanakya Private Limited 117.94

Interest on intercorporate deposit

Schloss Udaipur Private Limited 0.43 4.10

Schloss Chennai Private Limited 0.25

Schloss Chanakya Private Limited 0.55

Interest accrued but not due on 10.50% unsecured compulsorily convertible debentures

Project Ballet Bangalore Holdings (DIFC) Pvt. Limited, holding company 138.07 -

10.50% unsecured compulsorily convertible debentures

BSREP 11l India Ballet III Pte. Ltd - 1,502.75

Project Ballet Bangalore Holdings (DIFC) Pvt. Limited, holding company 1,502.75 -

(d) Corporate guarantee

Company's fellow subsidiaries i.e. Schloss HMA Private Limited and Leela Palaces and Resorts Limited and the ultimate holding company i.e. BSREP III India
Ballet Holdings (DIFC) Limited (from 31 March 2022) and BSREP III India Ballet Pte. Ltd. (upto 30 March 2022) have given corporate guarantee and fellow
subsidiaries also created charge over their total assets for the term loan and working capital facility availed by the company.

Employee benefits

(a) Defined contribution plan

The Company makes provident fund contributions to defined contribution plans for qualifying employees Under the plan, the Company is required to contribute a
specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The contributions payable under these plans by the Company are at rates specified in the rules of the
schemes

The contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss as they accrue. The amount as an expense towards contribution to provident fund, employees state
insurance and labour welfare fund for the year aggregated to Rs, 12.60 miltions (Previous period Rs. 11.93 millions).
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(b) Defined benefit plan

Gratuity:

The C(-)mpany operates post-employment defined benefit plan that provides gratuity. The Company has partly funded the defined benefit plan for eligible
employees. The schemne provides for lumpsum payment to eligible employees on retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment, of an
amount equivalent fo 15 days salary payable for each completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months subject to a limit of Rs. 20 lakhs. The
unfunded portion as well as the amounts in excess of the limit are to be borne by the Company as per policy. Eligibility occurs upon completion of five years of
service

The present value of the defined benefit obligation and current service cost are measured using the projected unit credit method with actuarial valuations being
carried out at each balance sheet date

The employees of HLV Limited were eligible and covered under the existing Group Gratuity-cum-Life assurance policies administered through HLV Limited,
Employee Group Gratuity Life Assurance Scheme. On 16 October 2019, the Company and Hotel Leelaventure Limited has entered into a Business Transfer
Agreement ("BTA") for acquisition of Bangalore hotel operations (the "Hotel") of HLV Limited. Pursuant to BTA, there has been complete transfer of employment
at the Hotel to the Company and the continuity of services for every employee at the Hotel was conserved. Pending transfer of plan assets and obligations under the
existing policy of HLV Limited, Employee Group Gratuity Life Assurance Scheme to the new policy of Schloss Bangalore Private Limited as at the reporting date,
the Company has considered the fair value of plan assets and obligations pertaining to the transferred employees at the hotel as accurnulated under the existing

policies for the purpose of actuarial valuation
The following details summarises the position of assets and obligations relating to the gratuity plan:

(a) Changes in the present value of the defined benefits obligation

(Rupees in millions)

) As at As at
. 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Present value of defined benefit obligation at beginning of the year 31.92 35.05
Acquisition adjustment - -
Interest cost 2.16 2.37
Current service cost 3.51 4.48
Benefits paid (5.59) (4.96)
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligation (5.65) (5.02)
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 26.36 31.92

(b) Fair value of plan assets (Rupees in millions)
Particulars L -
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 3.29 7.26
Acquisition adjustment 0.26 -
Actuarial return on plan assets (0.59) 0.49
Employer Contribution - 0.50
Benefits paid (1.84) (4.96)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 1.12 3.29
{¢) Amounts recognised in the balance sheet (Rupees in millions)
Particulars Do A
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 26.36 31.92
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 1.12 3.29
Liability to be recognised in the balance sheet 25.24 28.63
Recognised as:
Long-term provisions (Refer note 7) 24.68 28.11
Short-term provisions (Refer note 10) 0.58 0.54
36 Employee benefits (continued)
(d) Movement in the liability recognized in the balance sheet (Rupees in millions)
Particulars Asat ot
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Net liability at the beginning of the year 31.92 35.05
Expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss 0.62 1.33
Benefits paid (5.59) (4.96)
Actuarial return on plan assets (0.59) 0.49
Acquisition adjustment - -
Net liability at the end of the year 26.36 31.92
(e) Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss (Rupees in millions)
For the year ended For the year ended 31
Particulars 31 March 2022 March 2021
Current service cost 3.51 4.48
Interest cost 2.16 2.37
Expected retumn on plan assets (0.22) (0.51)
Net attu:irmj (gain)/ loss recognized in the year (4.83) (5.01)

0.62
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(f) Actuarial gain / loss on obligation (Rupees in millions)
For the year ended For the year ended 31
Particulars 31 March 2022 March 2021
Actuarial (gain) / loss arising from change in demographic assumption - -
Actuarial (gain) / loss arising from change in financial assumption (1.79) -
Actuarial (gain) / loss arising from experience adjustment (3.86) (5.02)
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation (5.65) (5.02)
(g) Actuarial gain / loss on plan assets (Rupees in millions)
For the year ended For the year ended 31
Particulars 31 March 2022 March 2021
Expected return on plan assets 0.22 0.51
Actual return on plan assets (0.59) 0.49
Actuarial gain / (loss) on plan assets (0.81) (0.02)
(h) Actuarial assumptions
Particulars Asat o
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Discount rate 7.26% 6.76%
Expected retumn on plan assets 7.00% 7.00%
Expected rate of salary increase 7.00% 6.76%

Mortality rate

100% of 1IALM (2012-14)

100% of IALM (2012-14)

The principal assumptions are the discount rate and salary growth rate. The discount rate is generally based upon the market yields available on government bonds

at the accounting date relevant to currency of benefit payments for a term that matches the liabilities. Salary growth rate is Company’s long-term best estimate as

to salary increases and takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion, business plan, HR policies and other relevant factors on long-term basis as provided

in relevant accounting standard

Compensated absences:

The reversal of compensated absences (non-funded) for current year is. 0.37 millions (Previous period ended 31 March 2021 amounting to Rs. 8,43 millions) has
been recognized in the statement of profit and loss, based on actuarial valuation carried out using Projected Unit Credit Method
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Segment Information :

I, Primary Segment Disclosure- Business Segment

As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

Particulars

Hotel Realty Unallocated Total Hotel Realty Unallocated Total
Revenue
Net External Sales 93579 210.20 - 1,145.99 41791 46.13 - 464.03
Inter Segment Sales - - - - - - - -
Total Revenue 935.79 210.20 - 1,145.99 417.91 46.13 - 464.03
Result
Segment Result (442.30) 13971 (857) (311.16) (781 88) 1970 (7.25) (769.43)
Less: Finance Costs - 105 50 1,123.05 1,228.55 - 457 850.61 855,19
Profit before tax (442.30) 34.21 (1.131.62) (1,539.71) (781.88) 15.13 (857.86)  (1,624.62)
Income taxes - - - - - = 3 =
Profit after tax (442.30) 34.21 (1.131.62) (1,539.71) {781.88) 15.13 (857.86)  (1,624.62)
OTHER INFORMATION
Segment Assets 12.201.09 2.201 86 548 70 1495166 | 1229171  2,231.32 137.24  14,66027
Total Assets 12,201.09 2,201.86 548.70 14,951.66 | 12,291.71  2,231.32 137.24  14,660.27
Segment Liabilities 499 82 1,188.63 15,006.50 16,694 95 35259  1.498.10 13,092.84  14.943.52
Total! Liabilities 499.82 1,188.63 15,006.50 16,694.95 352.59  1.498.10 13.092.84  14.943.52
Capital Expenditure 1.400 55 - - 1,40055 1,74274  1,84596 - 3,588.70
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 45428 1083 321 468 32 481.02 540 354 489 96
Non cash expenses other thandepreciation 39.96 - (8.51) 3145 5024 - 356,11 40636

II. Information about Secondary Business Segments:

There is no geographical segment to be reported since all the operations are undertaken in India,a
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38 Property, plant and equipment as at 31 March 2022 includes asset acquired under finance lease amounting to Rs 9.39 millions capitalised in line with the
requirements of Accounting Standard on "Leases" (AS-19) Depreciation for the period includes an amount of Rs 0,76 millions (Previous Period: Rs 0.77 millions)

being depreciation charged on these assets

The year-wise break-up of the outstanding lease obligation as on 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 in respect of these assets are as under:

(Rupees in millions)
. As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Assets taken on lease
Total Minimum Lease Payments at year end 1.60 6.40
Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments 1.58 6.16
Not later than one year
Minimum Lease Payments 1.60 4.80
Present Value 1.58 4.58
Later than one year but not later than five years
Minimum Lease Payments - 1.60
Present Value - 1.58
Later than five years
Minimum Lease Payments - -
Present Value * -
39 Unhedged foreign currency exposures as at the reporting date
Foreign currency exposures not hedged by derivative instruments are as follows:
2 As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Particulars
Foreign currency Rupees in millions _Foreign currency Rupees in millions
Foreign currency payables
- representing trade payables
EURO - - - -
usD - - 1,77,163 12.88
Foreign currency receivables
- representing advance
UsD - - - -

40 The Company has taken leasehold land under leave and license agreement for a period of 31 years. The unexpired period under the said agreement as on 31 March
2022 is 15 years. The total rental expense under non-cancellable operating leases rentals for the year ended is Rs. 128.76 millions (Previous period ended is Rs
129.55 millions)

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease are as follows:
(Rupees in millions)

Particul As at As at
artieuars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Not later than one yeat 96.61 92.01
Later than one year but not later than five years 560.54 533.85
Later than five years 1,379.79 1,503.10
2,036.94 2,128.96
41 Transfer pricing
The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required by the transfer pricing legislation under sections
92-92F of the Income-tax Act, 1961 The Company's transactions with related parties are at arms length as per the independent accountant's report for the year
ended 31 March 2021
Management believes the Company's transactions with related parties post 31 March 2021 continue to be at anns length so that the aforesaid legislation will not
have any impact on these financial statements, particularly on the amount of tax expenses and that of provision for tax
42 Utilisation of proceeds from issue of debentures (Rupees in millions)
For the year ended For the year ended 31
Particulars 31 March 2022 March 2021
Proceeds from issue of debentures - 1,027.75

Utilisation during the period

Purchase of hotel under slump sale -
Stamp duty charges -
Term loan upfront fee -
Working capital requirement
Purchase of Hotel land -
Unutilized amount as at year end -
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